
AGENDA 
CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING AND WORK SESSION 
         G.L. Gilleland Council Chambers on 2nd Floor

Monday, August 16, 2021 
5:00 P.M. 

Page 1 of 1 

1. Call to Order
2. Roll Call
3. Invocation and Pledge
4. Announcements
5. Approval of the Agenda
6. Public Input
7. Consent Agenda

a. Approve Minutes
• Regular Meeting held August 2, 2021

8. Employee Recognition
9. Georgia State Patrol Post #37 – Presentation of Donation

BUSINESS 
10. Proclamation – Lloyd Seay Day, September 2, 2021
11. Special Event Alcohol Permit – Good Shepherd’s Clinic, September 12, 2021
12. Special Event Alcohol Permit – Brew Crew, October 22 – 24, 2021
13. ZA C2100238:  City of Dawsonville has requested a zoning amendment for TMP 090 031 001 Located

at 1192 Highway 136 West, Land Lot 171 4th District, consisting of 0.17 acres, from PUD (Planned
Unit Development District) to INST (Institutional District).  Public Hearing Dates:  Planning
Commission on July 12, 2021 and City Council on August 2, 2021.  City Council for a decision on
August 16, 2021.

14. Budget Amendment – Gordon Pirkle Room Catering Kitchen Floor
15. FY 2022 Local Maintenance & Improvement Grant (LMIG)
16. Roadway Improvements Construction Project – Change Order Request
17. Intergovernmental Agreement with Dawson County – Howser Mill Road Improvement Project

WORK SESSION 
18. The Place of Dawson County – Presentation by Amy Palmer

STAFF REPORTS 

19. Bob Bolz, City Manager
20. Robin Gazaway, Finance Administrator

  ADJOURNMENT 
The next scheduled City Council meeting is Monday, September 20, 2021 

Those persons with disabilities who require reasonable accommodations in order to allow them to observe 
and/or participate in this meeting or who have questions regarding the accessibility of the meeting, should 
contact the Clerk at Dawsonville City Hall at 706-265-3256 at least two (2) business days prior to the meeting. 



                                           
 

 

    
     SUBJECT:                    CONSENT AGENDA           

   
     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  08/16/2021     
   
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: 

 
   CONSIDERATION AND APPROVAL OF ITEMS BELOW; SEE ATTACHED 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS  
 

a. Approve Minutes  
• Regular Meeting held August 2, 2021 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM #       7     
 



                                           
 

 

    
     SUBJECT:                       APPROVE MINUTES    

 
     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  08/16/2021     
   
 

 

     BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT #  NA      

   Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget    _____ Capital Budget    Other________  

 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____Enterprise Fund    _____General Fund 
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: 
 
     TO APPROVE THE MINUTES FROM: 
 

• REGULAR MEETING HELD AUGUST 2, 2021 
 
 

 
 
 

     HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 
 

 
 
     
 
 

     OPTIONS: 
           
  AMEND OR APPROVE AS PRESENTED 
 
 
 
 

     RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
     REQUESTED BY:  Beverly Banister, City Clerk    

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

 AGENDA ITEM #   7a      
 

 

 



MINUTES 
CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING  

G.L. Gilleland Council Chambers on 2nd Floor 
Monday, August 2, 2021 

5:00 P.M. 
 

Page 1 of 3 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER:  Mayor Eason called the meeting to order at 5:00 pm.   

2. ROLL CALL: Present were Councilmember John Walden, Councilmember Mark French, 
Councilmember Caleb Phillips, Councilmember William Illg, City Attorney Kevin Tallant, City Manager 
Bob Bolz, City Clerk Beverly Banister, Public Works Director Trampas Hansard, Planning Director 
David Picklesimer, Finance Administrator Robin Gazaway and Utilities Operation Manager Jacob 
Barr.   
 

3. INVOCATION AND PLEDGE:  Invocation and Pledge were led by Councilmember Walden. 
 

4. ANNOUNCEMENTS:  Mayor Eason announced the next Food Truck Friday event is this Friday, 
August 6th at the Farmer’s Market Pavilion.  He also stated qualifying for Councilmembers Post #2 
and Post #4 will occur at the Dawson County Board of Elections office from August 16-19, 2021, 8:30 
am – 4:30 pm.   
 

5. APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA:  Motion to approve the agenda as presented made by M. French; 
second by J. Walden.  Vote carried unanimously in favor.  
 

6. PUBLIC INPUT:   
• Tiffany Buchan, 13 Mill Crossing, Dawsonville – She let the Council know the excellent service 

she received from Jacob Barr when she had a concern with her water; she stated he was 
fabulous and always available to help her.  

 

7. CONSENT AGENDA:  Motion to approve the consent agenda for the following items (a) made by M. 
French; second by J. Walden.  Vote carried three in favor (French, Walden, Phillips) with one 
abstained (Illg).    

a. Approve Minutes  
• Regular Meeting and Work Session held July 19, 2021 
• Executive Session held July 19, 2021 

 

PUBLIC HEARING 
 

8. ZA C2100238:  City of Dawsonville has requested a zoning amendment for TMP 090 031 001 Located 
at 1192 Highway 136 West, Land Lot 171 4th District, consisting of 0.17 acres, from PUD (Planned 
Unit Development District) to INST (Institutional District).  Public Hearing Dates:  Planning 
Commission on July 12, 2021 and City Council on August 2, 2021.  City Council for a decision on 
August 16, 2021. 
 

Motion to open the public hearing made by J. Walden; second by C. Phillips.  Vote carried 
unanimously in favor.  
 

Planning and Zoning Director read the Zoning Amendment request.  Mayor Eason conducted the 
public hearing.  No one spoke in favor or opposition of the request.   
 

Motion to close the public hearing made by W. Illg; second by M. French.  Vote carried unanimously 
in favor.   
 

Mayor Eason stated this item will be presented at the August 16, 2021 meeting for a decision. 
 

BUSINESS 
 

9. RESOLUTION – GEORGIA STATE PATROL POST #37 DONATION:  Motion approve the resolution 
as presented made by C. Phillips; second by W. Illg.  Vote carried unanimously in favor. (Exhibit “A”) 

 

10. An Ordinance to Amend The City of Dawsonville Code of Ordinances Regarding Fire Prevention and 
Protection; To Provide for an Effective Date; And for Other Purposes (First Reading: July 19, 2021; 
Second Reading and Consideration to Adopt: August 2, 2021) 

 

Planning and Zoning Director Picklesimer read the second reading of the ordinance.   
 



MINUTES 
CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING  

G.L. Gilleland Council Chambers on 2nd Floor 
Monday, August 2, 2021 

5:00 P.M. 
 

Page 2 of 3 
 

Motion to approve the ordinance as presented made by J. Walden; second by M. French.  Vote 
carried unanimously in favor. (Exhibit “B”) 
 

11. MILLAGE RATE FOR TAX YEAR 2021:  Motion to set the 2021 millage rate to 8.021 and roll it back 
to zero made by C. Phillips; second by W. Illg.  Vote carried unanimously in favor.  
 

12. 2022 SOLID WASTE COLLECTION SERVICE RATE AND ESTABLISH SERVICE CHARGE:  
Motion to set the 2022 additional charge above the baseline charge of the contractor rate for solid 
waste collection at $4.00 per can, per month made by M. French; second by C. Phillips. Discussion 
amongst Council occurred regarding the rates and the cost of cans.   Vote carried unanimously in 
favor.  

 

Motion to approve the 2022 contractor rate for Red Oak Sanitation solid waste collection service at 
$13.40 per can, per month made by W. Illg; second by M. French.  Vote carried unanimously in favor.  
 

13. FARMERS MARKET USE AGREEMENT AMENDMENT:  Motion to approve the first amendment to 
the 2021 Farmers Market Use Agreement made by W. Illg; second b J. Walden.  Vote carried 
unanimously in favor.  
 

14. DISCUSSION AND ACTION ON ANX C2100043/ZA C2100043:  Attorney Tallant explained it is his 
recommendation to return this annexation and rezone request to the Planning Commission due to an 
incorrect TMP number used in the advertising of the request.  He stated new signs should be posted 
and new advertisements placed in the legal organ; he believes the advertising requirement will still 
be met with the item returning to the City Council on October 18, 2021 for a decision. 

 

Motion to refer ANX C2100043 and ZA C2100043 back to the Planning Commission made by M. 
French; second by W. Illg.  Vote carried unanimously in favor.  
 

15. FIFTY-FOURTH ANNUAL MOUNTAIN MOONSHINE FESTIVAL:  Tiffany Buchan presented a map 
to the Council of the layout for the festival.  Mayor Eason asked if the manager of Food Lion provided 
a letter regarding his approval of the use of parking spaces for the store to be given to the festival; 
Ms. Buchan stated no but was told he will contact the Mayor directly.  She stated he had no issue 
with parking but had concerns about an ATM, the use of the restrooms inside Food Lion and 
availability for employee parking.  Ms. Buchan was working toward getting these issues resolved. 
Further discussion occurred regarding the placement of food vendors. 
 

Motion to approve the permit and map as presented made by M. French; second by C. Phillips.  City 
Manager Bolz brought up a possible issue about the placement of cars being parked in an area the 
DC Fire Department may not approve.  Councilmember Walden prefers to hold off on approving the 
permit and map until the City hears from the manager at Food Lion.  Mayor Eason stated he will get 
with the manager and if there is any issue other than what has been stated, he will bring it back to the 
Council at the next meeting. Vote carried three in favor (French, Phillips, Illg) with one opposed 
(Walden).    

ADJOURNMENT:   
 

At 5:37 p.m. a motion to adjourn the meeting was made by M. French; second by J. Walden.  Vote 
carried unanimously in favor.   

 

 
Approved this 16th day of August 2021. 

 
 
By: CITY OF DAWSONVILLE 

         
         
              ___________________________________ 
   Mike Eason, Mayor 



MINUTES 
CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING  

G.L. Gilleland Council Chambers on 2nd Floor 
Monday, August 2, 2021 

5:00 P.M. 
 

Page 3 of 3 
 

 
 
   ___________________________________  
   Caleb Phillips, Councilmember Post 1 

 
         
   William Illg, Councilmember Post 2  

 
         
   John Walden, Councilmember Post 3 
                 
   ___________________________________ 
   Mark French, Councilmember Post 4 
  
 
    
 
 
Attested: _________________________        
              Beverly A. Banister, City Clerk 



Exhibit "A"



Exhibit "A"



Exhibit "B"



Exhibit "B"



Exhibit "B"



Exhibit "B"



                                           
 

 

    
     SUBJECT:                                  EMPLOYEE RECOGNITION_____________  

   
     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  08/16/2021     
   
 

 

     BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT #        

   Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget    _____ Capital Budget    Other________  

 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____Enterprise Fund    _____General Fund 
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: 
 

TO RECOGNIZE AND PRESENT THE FOLLOWING:  
• JULY 2021 EMPLOYEE OF THE MONTH  
• INTRODUCE NEW UTILITY DEPARTMENT EMPLOYEE – DAVID SCHUETTE 

 
 

     HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 
 
 

 
 

     OPTIONS: 
      
 
 

     RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
 
   
 
 

 
 

 
     REQUESTED BY:                 Bob Bolz, City Manager________ 

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM #    8     
 

 

 



                                           
 

 

    
     SUBJECT:           GEORGIA STATE PATROL POST #37 – PRESENTATION OF DONATION 

   
     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  08/16/2021    
   
 

 

     BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT #        

   Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget    _____ Capital Budget    Other ________  

 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____Enterprise Fund    _____General Fund 
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: 
 
   TO PRESENT EQUIPMENT FOR GEORGIA STATE PATROL OFFICERS AT POST #37  

 
 

     HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 
 
    RESOLUTION TO DONATE SPECIALTY EQUIPMENT APPROVED AT THE 08/02/2021 MEETING 
       
 
 

     OPTIONS: 
      
    
 
 

     RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
 
   
 
 

 
 
 

 
     REQUESTED BY: Bob Bolz, City Manager ____________ 

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM #    9     
 

 

 



                                           
 

 

    
     SUBJECT:   PROCLAMATION – LLOYD SEAY DAY, SEPTEMBER 2, 2021    

 
     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  08/16/2021       
   
 

 

     BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT #  NA      

   Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget    _____ Capital Budget    Other________  

 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____Enterprise Fund    _____General Fund 
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: 
 
    TO PROCLAIM SEPTEMBER 2, 2021 AS LLOYD SEAY DAY 
 
 
 

     HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 
 

    CODY DINSMORE TO BE PRESENT AT THE MEETING 
 
 

     OPTIONS: 
 
     READ INTO THE MINUTES  
 
 
 

     RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 
     REQUESTED BY:   Michael Eason, Mayor    

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM #       10     
 

 

 



Proclamation
Lloyd Seay Day 

September 2, 2021

WHEREAS, Lloyd Seay was born December 14, 1919 and was a native citizen of 
Dawsonville; and  

WHEREAS, Lloyd became one of the most known bootleggers of the post prohibition 
era of North Georgia and Atlanta; and 

WHEREAS, in 1938 he became the first winner of organized stock car racing as we know 
it in Georgia and went on to be one of the most successful racers of the pre-war era; and 

WHEREAS, Lloyd claimed a Daytona victory on August 24, 1941 driving for his cousin 
and fellow Dawsonville native, Raymond Parks; and 

WHEREAS, one week later won another race in High Point, North Carolina and one day 
later won the National Stock Car Championship Race at Lakewood Speedway in Atlanta 
on September 1, 1941 and claimed the title of National Champion: and  

WHEREAS, Lloyd returned home to Dawsonville the following day and was tragically 
shot to death on September 2, 1941 by his cousin over a dispute concerning a debt of 
sugar needed to produce moonshine; and  

WHEREAS, Raymond Parks paid for his intricately ornate grave marker located in the 
Dawsonville Cemetery and is one of the most viewed grave sites in Dawson County; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Dawsonville is rich in racing history and Lloyd Seay was among 
the first class to be honored and inducted into the Georgia Racing Hall of Fame in 2002. 

NOW, THEREFORE, I Mike Eason, Mayor of the City of Dawsonville, do hereby 
proclaim September 2, 2021 as Lloyd Seay Day and recognize Lloyd as a pioneer and 
icon of the City of Dawsonville and the sport of stock car racing recognizing him for his 
fearless driving style and, albeit short, his successful winning record.  

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and caused the Seal of the City 
of Dawsonville to be affixed this 16th day of August 2021. 

_______________________________ 
Mike Eason, Mayor 

Attest: 

Beverly A. Banister, City Clerk 



                                           
 

 

    
     SUBJECT:   SPECIAL EVENT ALCOHOL PERMIT – GOOD SHEPHERD’S CLINIC, 

SEPTEMBER 12, 2021 
 

     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  08/16/2021    
   
 

 

     BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT #        

   Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget    _____ Capital Budget    Other________  

 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____Enterprise Fund    _____General Fund 
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: 
 

TO CONSIDER APPROVAL FOR SPECIAL EVENT ALCOHOL PERMIT FOR GOOD 
SHEPHERD’S CLINIC FUNDRAISER 
     
 
 

 

     HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 
 

• EVENT LOCATED AT GEORGIA RACING HALL OF FAME ON 
SUNDAY, SEPTEMER 12, 2021 – 11:00 AM TO 2:00 PM 
 

• PERMIT PREVIOUSLY APPROVED FOR THEIR 2019 FUNDRAISER 
 

• STAFF RECOMMENDS APPROVAL 
 
 

   
 

     OPTIONS: 
 
 
 
 

     RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
   
 
 

 
 

     REQUESTED BY: Bob Bolz, City Manager______ 

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM #     11    
 

 

 







                                           
 

 

    
     SUBJECT:   SPECIAL EVENT ALCOHOL PERMIT – BREW CREW, OCTOBER 22 – 24, 2021  

 
     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  08/16/2021    
   
 

 

     BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT #        

   Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget    _____ Capital Budget    Other________  

 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____Enterprise Fund    _____General Fund 
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: 
 

TO CONSIDER APPROVAL FOR SPECIAL EVENT ALCOHOL PERMIT FOR BREW CREW TO 
SELL BEER AND WINE AND ALLOW FOR OPEN CONTAINER CONSUMPTION WITHIN THE 
TOWN DISTRICT AREA 
     
 
 

 

     HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 
 
TO OCCUR DURING MOONSHINE FESTIVAL; OCTOBER 22 – 24, 2021 
 
 

   
 

     OPTIONS: 
 
 
 
 

     RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
   
 
 

 
 

     REQUESTED BY: Bob Bolz, City Manager______ 

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM #     12    
 

 

 













                                           
 

 

SUBJECT:  ZA C2100238   _______________________ 
 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  08/16/2021        
 

 

BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT #_______________________________________ 

 Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget: _____ Capital Budget: Other________  
 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____ Enterprise Fund: _____General Fund 

 

 

PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: VOTE  
 
City of Dawsonville has requested a zoning amendment for TMP 090 031 001 Land Lot 171 4th District, Located at 1192 
Highway 136 West, consisting of 0.17 acres, from PUD (Planned Unit Development) to INST (Institutional District). Public 
Hearing Dates:  Planning Commission on July 12, 2021 and City Council on August 2, 2021.  City Council for a decision 
on August 16, 2021. 
 
HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 
• Parcel current use is Gold Creek Wastewater Lift Station. 
• The Planning and Zoning Department is requesting a zoning map amendment for City owned property. 
• The parcel is currently zoned PUD (Planned Unit Development).  The map amendment will align with City 

owned properties in the appropriate zoning category. 
• Planning Commission approved the requested zoning amendment on April 12, 2021. 

________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

OPTIONS:  
 

________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
 
Approve, Deny or Postpone 

 
 

DEPARTMENT:  Planning and Zoning 
 
REQUESTED BY: David Picklesimer_ 

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM # 13 
 

























                                           
 

 

    
     SUBJECT:   BUDGET AMENDMENT – GORDON PIRKLE ROOM CATERING KITCHEN 

FLOOR 
 

     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  08/16/2021    
   
 

 

     BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT #        

   Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget    _____ Capital Budget    Other________  

 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____Enterprise Fund    _____General Fund 
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: 
 
 

    TO REQUEST BUDGET AMENDMENT FROM GENERAL FUND RESERVES IN THE AMOUNT OF 
$6,000 FOR THE GORDON PIRKLE ROOM CATERING KITCHEN FLOOR 
     
 
 

 

     HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 
 
BUDGET AMENDMENT PREVIOUSLY APPROVED ON 05/17/2021 FOR THE INSTALLATION OF 
THE EXTERNAL WATER/SEWER LINES AND THE INSTALLATION OF THE INDOOR PLUMBING  
 

THREE INFORMAL BIDS RECEIVED: 
• HILL CONCRETE - $6,000 
• JERRY TOWNLEY CONCRETE - $7,136.49 
• GEORGIA EARTH & PIPE LLC - $8,100 

 

   
 

     OPTIONS: 
 
 
 

     RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
 
APPROVE $6,000 BUDGET AMENDMENT FROM GENERAL FUND RESERVES AND AWARD TO 
HILL CONCRETE 
 
 

 
 

     REQUESTED BY: Trampas Hansard, Public Works Director______ 

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM #      14     
 

 

 



                                           
 

 

    
     SUBJECT:    FY 2022 LOCAL MAINTENANCE & IMPROVEMENT GRANT (LMIG)  

   
     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  08/16/2021     
   
 

 

     BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT #        

   Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget    _____ Capital Budget    Other________  

 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____Enterprise Fund    _____General Fund 
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST:   
 

    TO REQUEST APPROVAL OF THE FY 2022 LMIG APPLICATION TO INSTALL A SIDEWALK ON ALLEN 
STREET TO MAIN STREET PARK AND TO APPROVE THE 30% MATCH OF $10,862.07.   

  
 
 

     HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 
 

• FY 2022 LMIG FUNDING, INCLUDING 30% MATCH IS $47,068.98 
 

• 30% MATCH OF $10,862.07 IS BUDGETED IN THE FY2022 ROADS BUDGET 
 

• TOTAL PROJECT COST IS $147,244.50  
 

• FY 2021 LMIG FUNDS ($42,704.64) WERE ROLLED OVER AND WILL BE COMBINED WITH 
THIS PROJECT – BALANCE TO BE PAID OUT OF SPLOST VI 
 

 
 

 

     OPTIONS: 
           
    
 
 

     RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
 
  STAFF RECOMMENDS APPROVAL AS PRESENTED 
 
 

      
 

REQUESTED BY: Trampas Hansard, Public Works Director 

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM #    15     
 

 

 



Revised 6/1/2020 
10/18/2013 

Page 1 

GEORGIA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION LOCAL 

MAINTENANCE & IMPROVEMENT GRANT (LMIG) 

APPLICATION FOR FISCAL YEAR 20___ 
TYPE OR PRINT LEGIBLY. ALL SECTIONS MUST BE COMPLETED. 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT INFORMATION 

Date of Application: 

Name of local government:   
Address:   
Contact Person and Title:   
Contact Person’s Phone Number: 
Contact Person’s Fax Number:   
Contact Person’s Email:   

Is the Priority List attached? 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT AFFIDAVIT AND CERTIFICATION 

I,                                                                             (Name), the                                                               (Title), on behalf of 
     (Local Government), who being duly sworn do swear that the information given 

herein is true to the best of his/her knowledge and belief.  Local Government swears and certifies that it has read and 
understands the LMIG General Guidelines and Rules and that it has complied with and will comply with the same. 

Local government further swears and certifies that it has read and understands the regulations for the Georgia Planning 
Act of 1989 (O.C.G.A. § 45-12-200, et seq.), Service Delivery Strategy Act (O.C.G.A. § 36-70-20, et seq.), and the Local 
Government Budgets and Audits Act (O.C.G.A. 36-81-7 et seq.) and will comply in full with said provisions. Local 
government further swears and certifies that the roads or sections of roads described and shown on the local government’s 
Project List are dedicated public roads and are part of the Public Road System in said county/city. Local government 
further swears and certifies that it complied with federal and/or state environmental protection laws and at the completion of 
the project(s), it met the match requirements as stated in the Transportation Investment ACT (TIA). 

Further, the local government shall be responsible for any claim, damage, loss or expense that is attributable to negligent acts, 
errors, or omissions related to the designs, drawings, specifications, work and other services furnished by or on behalf 
of the local government pursuant to this Application (“Loss”). To the extent provided by law, the local government further 
agrees to hold harmless and indemnify the DEPARTMENT and the State of Georgia from all suits or claims that may arise 
from said Loss. 



Revised 6/1/2020 
10/18/2013 

Page 2 

GEORGIA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION LOCAL 

MAINTENANCE & IMPROVEMENT GRANT (LMIG) 

APPLICATION FOR FISCAL YEAR 20___ 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT AFFIDAVIT AND CERTIFICATION 

If the local government fails to comply with these General Guidelines and Rules, or fails to comply with its Application and 
Certification, or fails to cooperate with the auditor(s) or fails to maintain and retain sufficient records, the DEPARTMENT 
may, at its discretion, prohibit the local government from participating in the LMIG program in the future and may pursue any 
available legal remedy to obtain reimbursement of the LMIG funds. Furthermore, if in the estimation of the DEPARTMENT, 
a roadway or bridge shows evidence of failure(s) due to poor workmanship, the use of substandard materials, or the 
failure to follow the required design and construction guidelines as set forth herein, the Department may pursue any available 
legal remedy to obtain reimbursement of the allocated LMIG funds or prohibit local government from participating in the 
LMIG program until such time as corrections are made to address the deficiencies or reimbursement is made.  All projects 
identified on the Project list shall be constructed in accordance with the Department’s Standard Specifications of 
Transportation Systems (Current Edition), Supplemental Specifications (Current Edition), and Special Provisions. 

Local Government: 
E-Verify Number 

(Signature) Sworn to and subscribed before me, 

(Print) This day of , 20 . 

Mayor / Commission Chairperson 

In the presence of: 
(Date) 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT SEAL:
NOTARY PUBLIC 

My Commission Expires:

NOTARY SEAL: 



FY _________ LMIG PROJECT LIST           COUNTY / CITY ___________________________

Road Name Beginning Ending Length 
(Miles)

Description of Work Project Cost Project Let 
Date



Russell R. McMurry, P.E., 
Commissioner 
One Georgia Center  
600 West Peachtree Street, NW  
Atlanta, GA 30308 

 (404) 631-1000 Main Office 

 
 

June 23, 2021 
 
Mike Eason, Mayor 
City of Dawsonville 
P.O. Box 6 
Dawsonville, Georgia  30534 
 
RE:   Fiscal Year 2022 Local Maintenance & Improvement Grant (LMIG) Program 
 
Dear Mayor Eason: 
 
We are pleased to announce that the Department will begin accepting applications for the Fiscal Year 2022 LMIG Program 
in July 2021.  Grants will be processed electronically through our GRANTS (LMIG) Application System.  To begin your 
FY 2022 LMIG Application, please visit the Department’s website at www.dot.ga.gov/PS/Local/LMIG.  This site provides 
a link to the LMIG Application, the LMIG Application Tutorial (Manual), and to the General Guidelines and Rules and other 
pertinent reports.  The project list will be entered directly into the LMIG Application System.  Please contact your District 
State Aid Coordinator, Jeramy Durrence, at 404-694-6545 for assistance with the online application process. 
 
For an application to be processed, the following requirements must be met: 

 A local government must be in Department of Audits and Accounts (DOAA) and Department of Community Affairs 

(DCA) audit compliance. 

 A signed cover letter must be attached and include a completion status of the last three fiscal years’ LMIG Grants. 

 A signature page must include both the local government seal and the notary seal. The application website 

provides a blank signature page for you to download, complete and upload as an attachment. 

 A local government must provide their District State Aid Coordinator with a Statement of Financial Expenditures 

form and invoices for Fiscal Year 2019 projects and all other prior years unless previously approved to 

combine funding for Fiscal Years 2019, 2020, and 2021. The forms can be attached in the LMIG Application 

System if they have not already been provided to your District State Aid Coordinator. 

All electronic LMIG applications must be received no later than February 1, 2022. Failure to submit applications by 
the deadline might result in a forfeiture of funds. 
 
Your formula amount for the Fiscal Year 2022 Program is $36,206.91 and your local match is 30%.  Each local government 
is required to match this formula amount in accordance with Code Section 48-8-244(d).     
 
If you have any questions regarding the LMIG Program, please contact the Local Grants Office in Atlanta at (404) 347-
0240.  Thank you for your attention and cooperation in this matter.  
 

Sincerely, 

 

Russell R. McMurry, P.E. 

Commissioner 

 
cc: Mr. Kelvin Mullins; Ms. Emily Dunn; Hon. Will Wade; Hon. Steve Gooch; Jeramy Durrence 



      

  SUBJECT:   ROADWAY IMPROVEMENTS CONSTRUCTION PROJECT – CHANGE ORDER 
REQUEST 

     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE: 08/16/2021 

     BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT # 

 Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget    _____ Capital Budget    Other________ 

Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____ SPLOST VI    _____General Fund 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: 

  TO REQUEST APPROVAL FOR A CHANGE ORDER IN THE AMOUNT OF $103,915.33 TO BE 
PAID OUT OF SPLOST VI FOR THE ROADWAY IMPROVEMENT PROJECT 

     HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 

• PROJECT PREVIOUSLY APPROVED IN THE AMOUNT OF $247,819.71 ON 06/21/2021 – ROADS
INCLUDE MAIN STREET, MEMORY LANE AND JACK HEARD ROAD

• CHANGE ORDER IS FOR FULL DEPTH RECLAMATION (FDR) OF ROADS WHICH WILL
INCREASE THE LIFE EXPECTANCY OF THE ROADS 15+ YEARS (TOTAL COST WOULD BE
$351,735.04 – OPTION #1)

• ORIGINAL PROJECT WAS BID TO MILL AND PAVE THE ROADS ONLY; CONCERN IS LIFE
EXPECTANCY WILL BE SHORT DUE TO THE CURRENT SHAPE OF THE ROAD

• OPTION #2 PROVIDED WAS PATCHING OF ROADS WITH MILLING AND PAVING; ADDITIONAL
COST WAS MORE (TOTAL COST WOULD BE $396,963.08)

     OPTIONS: 

     RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 

STAFF RECOMMENDS APPROVING CHANGE ORDER IN THE AMOUNT OF $103,915.33 FOR 
FULL DEPTH RECLAMATION  

     REQUESTED BY: Trampas Hansard, Public Works Director____ 

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR 

AGENDA ITEM #    16  



Proposal and Contract

Date: 8/6/2021
Project Name: FDR Option: Dawsonville Roadway Improvements
Project Location: Dawsonville, GA

Submitted to: City of Dawsonville
Contact: Bob Bolz

bob.bolz@dawsonville-ga.gov

We are pleased to submit a proposal for the following work on the referenced project, according to the following unit
prices, terms, and conditions.
Pay Item Description Quantity Unit Price Extension

Part 2 - Main St Mill & Overlay

1 Traffic Control 1.000 L.S. 6,494.68 6,494.68

2 8" FDR @ 50 Lbs/SY and 2" depth milling of excess asphalt 2,075.000 S.Y. 17.19 35,669.25

4 230.000 TON 120.65 27,749.50Recyled Asphalt Concrete 9.5 MM Superpave, GPI or 2 Including Bitum Matl.
&HLime

5 Bitum Tack Coat 208.000 GAL 2.95 613.60

6 Solid Traffic Stripe, 5 IN, White 750.000 L.F. 0.35 262.50

7 Solid Traffic Stripe, 5 IN, Yellow 300.000 L.F. 0.35 105.00

8 Solid Thermoplastic Traffic Stripe, 24 IN, White 12.000 L.F. 14.28 171.36

9 Solid Thermoplastic Traffic Stripe, 8 IN, White 345.000 L.F. 3.11 1,072.95

10 Pavement Marking, Tum Arrow 5.000 EACH 82.25 411.25

11 Inlet Sediment Trap, Sd2-P 2.000 EACH 194.97 389.94

Sub-Total: Part 2 - Main St Mill & Overlay 72,940.03

Part 3 - Memory Ln Mill & Overlay

1 Traffic Control 1.000 L.S. 13,397.16 13,397.16

5 8" FDR @ 50 Lbs/SY and 2"-6" variable depth milling of excess asphalt 5,485.000 S.Y. 14.55 79,806.75

6 605.000 TON 104.85 63,434.25Recyled Asphalt Concrete 9.5 MM Superpave, GPl or 2 Including Bitum Matl. &H
Lime

7 Bitum Tack Coat 550.000 GAL 2.95 1,622.50

8 Solid Traffic Stripe, 5 IN, White 3,800.000 L.F. 0.28 1,064.00

9 Solid Traffic Stripe, 5 IN, Yellow 3,850.000 L.F. 0.28 1,078.00

10 Solid Thermoplastic Traffic Stripe, 24 IN, White 24.000 L.F. 5.50 132.00

11 Solid Thermoplastic Traffic Stripe, 8 IN, White 180.000 L.F. 2.73 491.40

12 Inlet Sediment Trap, Sd2-P 4.000 EACH 194.97 779.88

Sub-Total: Part 3 - Memory Ln Mill & Overlay 161,805.94

OPTION #1

bbanister
Highlight



Part 4 - Jack Heard Rd Mill & Overlay

1 Traffic Control 1.000 L.S. 14,595.63 14,595.63

2 8" FDR @ 50 Lbs/SY and 2" depth milling of excess asphalt 2,265.000 S.Y. 16.51 37,395.15

4 250.000 TON 117.95 29,487.50Recyled Asphalt Concrete 9.5 MM Superpave, GPl or 2 Including Bitum Matl.
&HLime

5 Bitum Tack Coat 230.000 GAL 2.95 678.50

Sub-Total: Part 4 - Jack Heard Rd Mill & Overlay 82,156.78

Part 5 - Memory Ln Parking Lot

1 Traffic Control 1.000 L.S. 2,681.97 2,681.97

2 Grading Complete 1.000 L.S. 3,587.15 3,587.15

3 Graded Aggregate Base Course, 6 IN, Incl. Matl. 500.000 S.Y. 24.31 12,155.00

4 42.000 TON 160.87 6,756.54Recyled Asphalt Concrete 9.5 MM Superpave, GPl or 2 Including Bitum Matl.
&HLime

5 Recycled Asphalt Concret 19 MM Superpave, GPl or 2 Including Bitum Matl. &HLime 55.000 TON 145.35 7,994.25

6 Bitum Tack Coat 50.000 GAL 2.95 147.50

7 Relocate Existing Street Sign 1.000 EACH 287.88 287.88

8 Handicap Parking Sign 1.000 EACH 352.50 352.50

9 Solid Traffic Stripe, 5 IN, White 400.000 L.F. 1.88 752.00

10 Pavement Marking, Handicap Symbol 1.000 EACH 117.50 117.50

Sub-Total: Part 5 - Memory Ln Parking Lot 34,832.29

QUOTE TOTAL: 351,735.04

bbanister
Highlight



Notes:
 Excludes prime coat and sand.
 Excludes staking and testing.

SPECIAL PROVISIONS: Prices do not include the cost of removal or disposal of rock, unsuitable subgrade materials, or hazardous waste
materials. Grading will have been completed by others within plus or minus .1 foot, with satisfactory compaction in our work area. We will not
be responsible for actual or consequential damage to underground utilities, structures or shallow utilities not specifically located by others. We
will not be responsible for drainage design grades or existing conditions provide for a slope of less than 1%.

TERMS OF PAYMENT: Final measurements will be made upon completion and an invoice prepared using the UNIT PRICES indicated above.
Estimates in the amount of 90% of work completed will be invoiced periodically with payment due in 30 days. Payment in full will be made no
later than 30 days after completion of work. Should the amount due under this contract or any part of it be collected by law or through an
attorney-at-law, the contractor shall be entitled to collect attorney's fees in the amount equal to 15% of such amount, and all costs of collection,
plus interest at the rate of 8% per annum from 30 days after completion of work. If OWNER desires that we do any work not called for in our
contract, we will record cost of such work, plus 10% General Overhead and 10% Profit, and prepare "Extra Work" invoices in addition to our
contract invoices.
This proposal is subject to acceptance within 30 days, or may be made a contract thereafter if and when accepted by you and approved by Blount
Construction Company, Inc.

Respectfully Submitted,

_________________________ ________________________
(Signature) (Signature)

_________________________ Blake Merritt, Estimator/PM
(Printed Name and Title) (Printed Name and Title)

blake.merritt@blountconstruction.com
(404) 670 - 4878

___________________________________ Blount Construction Company, Inc.
(Company or Firm) (Company or Firm)

___________________________________ 8/6/2021
(Date) (Date)



Proposal and Contract

Date: 8/6/2021
Project Name: Patching Option: Dawsonville Road Improvements
Project Location: Dawsonville, GA

Submitted to: City of Dawsonville
Contact: Bob Bolz

bob.bolz@dawsonville-ga.gov

We are pleased to submit a proposal for the following work on the referenced project, according to the following unit
prices, terms, and conditions.
Pay Item Description Quantity Unit Price Extension

Part 2 - Main St Mill & Overlay

1 Traffic Control 1.000 L.S. 5,613.43 5,613.43

2 Mill Asph Cone Pvmt., 1 1-2 IN Depth 2,075.000 S.Y. 5.36 11,122.00

4 171.000 TON 123.22 21,070.62Recyled Asphalt Concrete 9.5 MM Superpave, GPI or 2 Including Bitum Matl.
&HLime

5 Bitum Tack Coat 220.000 GAL 2.95 649.00

6 Solid Traffic Stripe, 5 IN, White 750.000 L.F. 0.35 262.50

7 Solid Traffic Stripe, 5 IN, Yellow 300.000 L.F. 0.35 105.00

8 Solid Thermoplastic Traffic Stripe, 24 IN, White 12.000 L.F. 14.28 171.36

9 Solid Thermoplastic Traffic Stripe, 8 IN, White 345.000 L.F. 3.11 1,072.95

10 Pavement Marking, Tum Arrow 5.000 EACH 82.25 411.25

11 Inlet Sediment Trap, Sd2-P 2.000 EACH 194.97 389.94

12 Recycled Asphalt Concrete Patching, Incl. Bitum. Matl. & H-Lime 460.000 TON 139.77 64,294.20

Sub-Total: Part 2 - Main St Mill & Overlay 105,162.25

Part 3 - Memory Ln Mill & Overlay

1 Traffic Control 1.000 L.S. 12,515.91 12,515.91

2 Mill Asph Cone Pvmt., Variable Depth, 0-2 IN 3,935.000 S.Y. 4.19 16,487.65

3 Mill Asph Cone Pvmt., Variable Depth, 2-4 IN 1,300.000 S.Y. 5.93 7,709.00

4 Mill Asph Cone Pvmt., Variable Depth, >41N 250.000 S.Y. 10.20 2,550.00

6 455.000 TON 109.64 49,886.20Recyled Asphalt Concrete 9.5 MM Superpave, GPl or 2 Including Bitum Matl. &H
Lime

7 Bitum Tack Coat 580.000 GAL 2.95 1,711.00

8 Solid Traffic Stripe, 5 IN, White 3,800.000 L.F. 0.28 1,064.00

9 Solid Traffic Stripe, 5 IN, Yellow 3,850.000 L.F. 0.28 1,078.00

10 Solid Thermoplastic Traffic Stripe, 24 IN, White 24.000 L.F. 5.50 132.00

11 Solid Thermoplastic Traffic Stripe, 8 IN, White 180.000 L.F. 2.73 491.40

12 Inlet Sediment Trap, Sd2-P 4.000 EACH 194.97 779.88

OPTION #2

bbanister
Highlight



13 1,210.000 TON 134.35 162,563.50Recycled Asphalt Concrete Patching, Incl. Bitum. Matl. & H. Lime, Sawcuts,
Pavement Removal and Disposal

Sub-Total: Part 3 - Memory Ln Mill & Overlay 256,968.54

Part 5 - Memory Ln Parking Lot

1 Traffic Control 1.000 L.S. 2,681.97 2,681.97

2 Grading Complete 1.000 L.S. 3,587.15 3,587.15

3 Graded Aggregate Base Course, 6 IN, Incl. Matl. 500.000 S.Y. 24.31 12,155.00

4 42.000 TON 160.87 6,756.54Recyled Asphalt Concrete 9.5 MM Superpave, GPl or 2 Including Bitum Matl.
&HLime

5 Recycled Asphalt Concret 19 MM Superpave, GPl or 2 Including Bitum Matl. &HLime 55.000 TON 145.35 7,994.25

6 Bitum Tack Coat 50.000 GAL 2.95 147.50

7 Relocate Existing Street Sign 1.000 EACH 287.88 287.88

8 Handicap Parking Sign 1.000 EACH 352.50 352.50

9 Solid Traffic Stripe, 5 IN, White 400.000 L.F. 1.88 752.00

10 Pavement Marking, Handicap Symbol 1.000 EACH 117.50 117.50

Sub-Total: Part 5 - Memory Ln Parking Lot 34,832.29

QUOTE TOTAL: 396,963.08

bbanister
Highlight



Notes:
 Excludes staking and testing.

SPECIAL PROVISIONS: Prices do not include the cost of removal or disposal of rock, unsuitable subgrade materials, or hazardous waste
materials. Grading will have been completed by others within plus or minus .1 foot, with satisfactory compaction in our work area. We will not
be responsible for actual or consequential damage to underground utilities, structures or shallow utilities not specifically located by others. We
will not be responsible for drainage design grades or existing conditions provide for a slope of less than 1%.

TERMS OF PAYMENT: Final measurements will be made upon completion and an invoice prepared using the UNIT PRICES indicated above.
Estimates in the amount of 90% of work completed will be invoiced periodically with payment due in 30 days. Payment in full will be made no
later than 30 days after completion of work. Should the amount due under this contract or any part of it be collected by law or through an
attorney-at-law, the contractor shall be entitled to collect attorney's fees in the amount equal to 15% of such amount, and all costs of collection,
plus interest at the rate of 8% per annum from 30 days after completion of work. If OWNER desires that we do any work not called for in our
contract, we will record cost of such work, plus 10% General Overhead and 10% Profit, and prepare "Extra Work" invoices in addition to our
contract invoices.

This proposal is subject to acceptance within 30 days, or may be made a contract thereafter if and when accepted by you and approved by Blount
Construction Company, Inc.

Respectfully Submitted,

_________________________ ________________________
(Signature) (Signature)

_________________________ Blake Merritt, Estimator/PM
(Printed Name and Title) (Printed Name and Title)

blake.merritt@blountconstruction.com
(404) 670 - 4878

___________________________________ Blount Construction Company, Inc.
(Company or Firm) (Company or Firm)

___________________________________ 8/6/2021
(Date) (Date)



      

  SUBJECT:   INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT WITH DAWSON COUNTY – 
HOWSER MILL ROAD IMPROVEMENT PROJECT 

     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  08/16/2021  

     BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT # 

 Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget    _____ Capital Budget    Other________  

Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____Enterprise Fund    _____General Fund 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: 
  TO CONSIDER APPROVAL OF IGA FOR JOINT HOWSER MILL ROAD IMPROVEMENT PROJECT 

     HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 

• FUNDING APPROVED PREVIOUSLY AT THE 06/21/2021 CITY COUNCIL MEETING
• DAWSON COUNTY APPROVED IGA ON 08/05/2021

     OPTIONS: 

     RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 

     REQUESTED BY: Bob Bolz, City Manager______ 

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR 

AGENDA ITEM #     17 























                                           
 

 

    
     SUBJECT:   THE PLACE OF DAWSON COUNTY – PRESENTATION BY AMY PALMER 

 
     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  08/16/2021    
   
 

 

     BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT #        

   Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget    _____ Capital Budget    Other________  

 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____Enterprise Fund    _____General Fund 
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: 
 
PRESENTATION BY AMY PALMER TO EXPLAIN THE PURPOSE AND SERVICES OF THE 
PLACE OF DAWSON COUNTY 
 
     
 
 

 

     HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 
 

   
 

     OPTIONS: 
 
 
 

     RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
   
 
 

 
 

     REQUESTED BY: Mike Eason, Mayor______ 

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM #     18     
 

 

 



                                           
 

 

    
     SUBJECT:                       STAFF REPORT: CITY MANAGER    

 
     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  08/16/2021       
   
 

 

     BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT #  NA      

   Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget    _____ Capital Budget    Other________  

 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____Enterprise Fund    _____General Fund 
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: 
 
     TO PROVIDE PROJECT UPDATES  

 
 
 

     HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 
 

 
    SEE ATTACHED OUTLINE  
     
 
 

     OPTIONS: 
 
      
      
 
 
 

     RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

     REQUESTED BY:  Bob Bolz, City Manager    

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM #     19     
 

 

 



CITY MANAGER REPORT 

AUGUST 10 FOR AUGUST 16, 2021 MEETING 

COVID: We continue to monitor the pandemic closely as Georgia starts to feel the effects of the Delta 
variant. In Georgia cases are up 47%, hospitalizations are up 28%, ICU admissions are up 17%, and deaths 
are up 146%. This week there were 31,990 new cases and 857 new admissions to hospitals. Ventilator use 
is rising fast as well. Hospitalization of young people for COVID by age group last week showed the 
greatest increase in ages 14-17, followed by 18-22, then 11-13, and 5-10 YOA. We need to maintain our 
vigilance, urge vaccination and proper healthy practices. No staff are absent due to COVID, and we 
continue to encourage staff to get vaccinated even allowing them to do so on staff time. 

August Food Truck Night: August 6th Food Truck Night was a success with all the food vendors doing very 
well. Our next event is scheduled for September 3rd, and we hope it will include the grand opening of the 
new Skate Park. 
 
Franchise Fees: Thanks to work from GMA’s Ryan Fender and our own Robin Gazaway, we received a 
check for $8,698.17 from Windstream/Kinetics for additional franchise fees. 
 
Law Enforcement: The two juveniles arrested for attempted arson at Wallace Park were to be arraigned 
in Juvenile Court; thus far, we have not learned the disposition. 
 
Deputy Program with Dawson County: Major Greg Rowan and I have been working together to iron out 
the details for the deputy program. Thus far we know they are working up a plan to cover the park after 
school for the short-term until the two new folks who will be assigned the city complete their Field 
Training Officer program. The plan will include using SRO and UPD staff assigned to the park specifically. 
The first day of school, deputies dealt with four Jr. High individuals who were misbehaving, damaging 
equipment, cursing, and other acts on the playground   

Senator Warnock’s Representatives Visit: Two representatives from Senator Warnock’s office visited for a 
tour of the GRHOF, Elliott Airfield, and the Atlanta Motorsports Park. To say the least, they were 
impressed.  

GRHOF/Dawsonville History Museum: The exterior work bringing water and sewer to the Pirkle Room is 
complete, and the new concrete floor should be poured soon.  We are seeking cost estimates for the 
framing and other work inside. The GA Racing Hall of Fame Induction Ceremony on August 7th was a 
success. Much thanks to CM Phillips for helping with the MC duties. Next on the horizon is the Labor Day 
Car Show in September. Efforts are underway to attain a grant from state ARP funding for the facility. 
 
Wastewater Treatment Plant: Turnipseed Engineering is developing the final design as well as the USDA 
funding package for this priority project. They are recommending moving the effluent portion further 
upstream on Flat Creek nearer the current plant. This will save the installation of one pump station. We 
await EPD’s approval. 
 



Water System Upgrades: We have started the EPD approval procedure for drilling a new well. Once 
approved, we can begin any design, drilling or any related work on a filter system for what would become 
well #112. Work continues on repairs to well #110.  
 
Paving & Projects: The joint paving City – County paving of Howser Mill Road is in the final planning 
stages. The county has approved the IGA, and it will now come back to the City Council/Mayor for 
approval. We hope this project can start in September.  
 
A pre-construction meeting was held with Blount Paving who was awarded the paving contract for Main 
and Jack Heard Streets as well as Memory Lane. They are recommending a change order as they feel the 
roads need full depth reclamation, staff concur. We have cost estimates for presentation to the City 
Council and the Mayor at the August 16th meeting. These costs will be covered out of remaining SPLOST 
VI funding. The finished product should provide roads with a 10-15 year lifespan, as opposed to two to 
five years. If approved, work should start in September while the same contractor is doing Howser Mill 
Road jointly for the city and county.  
 
We have instructed Turnipseed Engineering to begin engineering work on priority roads to be paved out 
of SPLOST VII. This will speed up the process once those funds are available. These roads would include, 
Maple Street, Richmond Drive, the Pearl Chambers area, Bear’s Den, Stonewall subdivision, Rain Hill 
subdivision, Stegal, and Burt’s Crossing I. We will have them engineer Creekstone Phase I as well for 
pavement work covered by infrastructure fees.  
 
Sidewalk Projects: We held a pre-construction meeting with Summit Construction who was awarded the 
contract for the Allen Street Sidewalk extension. They should be beginning work in the next three weeks. 
This project will be paid for out of SPLOST VI. We have also directed Turnipseed to give us cost estimates 
on preparing engineering for selected sidewalks we might be able to fund out of SPLOST VII. 
 
Severe Storms: As usual for this time of year, Utility and Public Works staff responded to several sudden, 
heavy rainstorms, some with power outages. These were handled with no problems. 
 
Greening the City: The City Manager and Finance Director met with Nissan’s lead alternative fuel 
representative to discuss electric vehicle possibilities. While here we also discussed the Nissan truck for 
consideration in future budget packages. We continue to research EV chargers, and solar energy 
opportunities. 
 
Main Street Park: Progress continues as we work to increase the amenities and operation of this 
wonderful addition to the city, including:  

• The dog park project continues as we work with our Eagle Scout candidate. Trees have been 
planted, benches installed and some of the signage erected. Work should continue and the 
project is completed by the end of summer. There is now a sidewalk from the new Oakdale 
subdivision to the dog park from which people can easily access Main Street Park. We hope to 
connect the Stonewall subdivision as well. 

• With the delay involved with the trail IGA with the county, the Eagle Scout candidate had to 
withdraw this project from his application and select a project elsewhere. We have met with the 
Fire Chief and have resolved the bridge location issues. 



• The Eagle Scout candidate continues his work designing and constructing a lending library that 
will be installed in the vicinity of the Main Street Park Playground.  

• 13 of the 14 new exercise stations are installed and receiving a great deal of use. We will install 
the last station next week. While here, we also had the contractor construct some concrete steps 
near the rest room. 

• The contractor should start work on the concrete floors for the two picnic shelters soon. All our 
concrete work has been hampered by wet weather and the limited availability of concrete. 

• The concrete skate pad is complete, and we are awaiting installation of the elements once 
manufacturing is completed. Manufacturing has been hampered by material availability due to 
the pandemic. The target date for installation is August 19th. We are hoping to have everything in 
place before the September 3rd Food Truck Night. As part of that event, we hope to have a grand 
opening with a professional skater demonstration and a variety of door prizes. 

• On August 21st, the Women’s Club will feature Main Street Park’s pollinator garden in the state’s 
annual pollinator census tour. 

 
Farmer’s Market: We finally received picnic tables for the pavilion. These had been hampered by 
pandemic-related shipping issues. They have been assembled and we hosted our first non-Farmer’s 
Market group rental.  
 
The Amicalola Regional Farmer’s Market has requested revisions to their agreement with the city, 
including, elimination of Friday night use and extension of two hours on Saturdays. The staff concur and a 
revised agreement has been prepared for consideration by the City Council/Mayor. 
 
Personnel: Several staff have taken some well-deserved time off this month. GMA gave staff a fine 
presentation on the new deferred contributions plan being offered. We were happy to welcome David 
Schutte to the Utility Department. 
 
Leak Adjustments: 7 accounts this month 

Water   $462.79  Sewer   $752.27 

Total     $1,212.06 



                                           
 

 

    
     SUBJECT:                       STAFF REPORT: FINANCE ADMINISTRATOR    

 
     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  08/16/2021       
   
 

 

     BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT #  NA      

   Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget    _____ Capital Budget    Other________  

 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____Enterprise Fund    _____General Fund 
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: 
 
     TO PRESENT FUND BALANCE AND ACTIVITY THROUGH JULY 31, 2021  

 
 

 
 

     HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 
 

 
    SEE ATTACHED FINANCIAL REPORTS  
     
 
 

     OPTIONS: 
 
      
      
 
 
 

     RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

     REQUESTED BY:  Robin Gazaway, Finance Administrator    

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM #   20   
 

 

 



REVENUES 
Taxes 
Licenses and permits 
Intergovernmental revenues 
Fees 
Other 

Total revenues 

EXPENDITURES 
Department: 

Council 

Mayor 
Elections 
Administration 
City Hall building 
Animal control 
Roads 
Parks 
Planning and zoning 
Economic development 

Total expenditures 

TOTAL REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES 

Transfer in From Reserves 

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE 

CITY OF DAWSONVILLE, GEORGIA 
GENERAL FUND 

July 1, 2021 - July 30, 2021 

Budget Actual 

$ 1,744,550 $ 149,925 
102,525 2,110 
35,000 

249,000 6,015 
70,057 6,510 

2,201,132 164,560 

99,215 11,130 
21,480 1,378 

8,000 
947,570 88,789 
131,135 2,462 

1,523 
520,996 47,583 

53,913 41,882 
380,300 43,549 

37,000 1,000 

2,201,132 237,773 

(73,213) 

73,213 

9% 

Percentage 

8.59% 
2.06% 
0.00% 
2.42% 
9.29% 

7.48% 

11.22% 
6.42% 
0.00% 

9.37% 
1.88% 
0.00% 
9.13% 

77.68% 
11.45% 
2.70% 

10.80% 



REVENUES 
Water fees 
Sewer fees 
Garbage fees 
Miscellaneous 

Total revenues 

EXPENDITURES 
Depreciation 
Garbage service 
Group insurance 
Insurance 
Interest 
Payroll taxes 
Professional 
Miscellaneous 
Repairs/supplies 
Retirement 
Salaries 
Technical services 
Utilities 

Total expenditures 

INCOME (LOSS) 

CITY OF DAWSONVILLE, GEORGIA 
WATER, SEWER, AND GARBAGE FUND 

July I, 2021 - July 30, 202l 

Budget 

$ 710,000 $ 

810,000 
203,500 
371,525 

2,095,025 

574,000 
175,000 
124,000 

87,450 
27,778 

115,891 
248,865 
145,423 
22,000 

347,402 
72,037 

155,179 

2,095,025 

Actual Percentage 

70,175 9.88% 
81,293 10.04% 
20,402 10.03% 

3,735 1.01% 

175,605 8.38% 

34,418 6.00% 
34,034 19.45% 
14,456 11.66% 

#DIV/0! 
6,809 7.79% 
2,412 8.68% 

30 0.03% 
13,788 5.54% 
3,980 2.74% 
2,306 10.48% 

31,924 9.19% 
3,454 4.79% 

780 0.50% 

148,391 7.08% 

27,214 



SPLOSTVJ 

REVENUES 

Taxes 

Interest 

Other 

Total revenues 

EXPENDITURES (Capital Outlays) 

City hall acquisition 

Roads and sidewalks 

Public works equipment - roads 

Sewer projects 
Public works equipment - sewer 

Water projects 

Public works equipment - water 

Farmers market 
Parks and recreation 

Total expenditures 

TOT AL REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES 

Transfer in From Reserves 

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE 

CITY OF DJ\ WSONVJLLE, GEORGIA 
SPLOST 

July l, 2021 -July 30, 2021 

Budget 

300 

555,700 

556,000 

494,000 

62,000 

556,000 

Actual 

58 

58 

750 

750 

(692) 

692 

(0) 

Percentage 

#DIV/0! 

19.23% 

0.00% 

0.01% 

#DIV/0! 

0.00% 

0.00% 

0.00% 

0.00% 

0.00% 

0.00% 
1.21% 

0.00% 

0.13% 


	1. 08.16.2021 AGENDA City Council Regular Meeting 
	7. Executive Summary For Agenda Items CONSENT AGENDA
	7a. 2 08.02.2021 Minutes.DRAFT
	08.02.2021 MINUTES.pdf
	R2021-04 GA State Patrol Post 37.pdf
	Ordinance 02-2021_Fire Prevention and Protection_Passed 08022021.pdf

	8. 1  Executive Summary For Agenda Items EMPLOYEE RECOGNITION
	9. 1 Executive Summary For Agenda Items GSP RESOLUTION
	10. 1 Executive Summary For Agenda Items PROCLAMATION_LLOYD SEAY
	10. 2 Proclamation - Lloyd Seay Day
	11. 2 GRITS  GRANOLA BRUNCH EVENT _ 09.12.2021_Redacted
	12. 1 Executive Summary For Agenda Items BREW CREW
	12. 2 BREW CREW OF NORTH GEORGIA LLC at MMF 10.22_24.2021_Redacted
	13. 1 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY AGENDA GOLD CREEK WASTEWATER LIFT STATION
	13. 2 08.02.2021_GOLD CREEK WASTEWATER _C2100238
	14. 1 Executive Summary For Agenda Items GP ROOM-KITCHEN FLOOR
	15. 2 FY 2022 LMIG Affidavit and Certification_City of Dawsonville
	15. 3 FY2022_LMIG PROJECT LIST
	15. 4 06.23.2021 FY2022 LMIG Award Letter
	16. 2 FDR Option Dawsonville Roadway Improvements
	16. 3 Patching Option Dawsonville Roadway Improvements
	17. 2 IGA with City Re Howser Mill Road Construction Project (NOT FULLY EXECUTED)- 08.05.21
	18. 1 Executive Summary For Agenda Items THE PLACE OF DAWSON COUNTY
	19. 1  Executive Summary For Agenda Items CITY MANAGER
	20. 1 Executive Summary For Agenda Items FINANCE ADMINISTRATOR
	20. 2 Financial Statements

	Date of Application: August 16, 2022
	Name of local government: City of Dawsonville
	Address: 415 Hwy 53 E, Suite 100 Dawsonville, GA 30534
	Contact Person and Title: Trampas Hansard, Public Works Director
	Contact Persons Phone Number: (706) 265-3256
	Contact Persons Fax Number: (706) 265-4214
	Contact Persons Email: trampas.hansard@dawsonville-ga.gov
	I: Mike Eason
	Name the: Mayor
	Local Government who being duly sworn do swear that the information given: City of Dawsonville
	Text2: 
	APPLICATION FOR FISCAL YEAR 20: 22
	Print: Mike Eason 
	Date: 
	EVerify Number: 100707
	day of: 
	20: 
	My Commission Expires: 
	21: 
	FY: 2022
	COUNTY  CITY: City of Dawsonville
	Road NameRow1: Allen Street
	BeginningRow1: Route 53
	EndingRow1: Main Street Park
	Length MilesRow1: 1,800 linear FT
	Description of WorkRow1: construct concrete sidewalk
	Project CostRow1: $147,244.50
	Project Let DateRow1: on or aboutSeptember 2021
	Road NameRow2: 
	BeginningRow2: 
	EndingRow2: 
	Length MilesRow2: 
	Description of WorkRow2: 
	Project CostRow2: 
	Project Let DateRow2: 
	Road NameRow3: 
	BeginningRow3: 
	EndingRow3: 
	Length MilesRow3: 
	Description of WorkRow3: 
	Project CostRow3: 
	Project Let DateRow3: 
	Road NameRow4: 
	BeginningRow4: 
	EndingRow4: 
	Length MilesRow4: 
	Description of WorkRow4: 
	Project CostRow4: 
	Project Let DateRow4: 
	Road NameRow5: 
	BeginningRow5: 
	EndingRow5: 
	Length MilesRow5: 
	Description of WorkRow5: 
	Project CostRow5: 
	Project Let DateRow5: 
	Road NameRow6: 
	BeginningRow6: 
	EndingRow6: 
	Length MilesRow6: 
	Description of WorkRow6: 
	Project CostRow6: 
	Project Let DateRow6: 
	Road NameRow7: 
	BeginningRow7: 
	EndingRow7: 
	Length MilesRow7: 
	Description of WorkRow7: 
	Project CostRow7: 
	Project Let DateRow7: 
	Road NameRow8: 
	BeginningRow8: 
	EndingRow8: 
	Length MilesRow8: 
	Description of WorkRow8: 
	Project CostRow8: 
	Project Let DateRow8: 
	Road NameRow9: 
	BeginningRow9: 
	EndingRow9: 
	Length MilesRow9: 
	Description of WorkRow9: 
	Project CostRow9: 
	Project Let DateRow9: 
	Road NameRow10: 
	BeginningRow10: 
	EndingRow10: 
	Length MilesRow10: 
	Description of WorkRow10: 
	Project CostRow10: 
	Project Let DateRow10: 


